
UNITED NATIONS 1246th meet:ing 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL 
Thirty .. filth Session 

Thursday, 4 Apri11963, 
at 3.15 p.m. 

OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Agenda item 4: 
Report of the International Monetary Fund 

(concluded) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • ~5 

Agenda item 10: 
Population questions (continued) • • • • • • • • • ~9 

President: Mr. Alfonso PATINO (Colombia). 

Present: 

Representatives of the following States: Argentina, 
Australia, Austria, Colombia, Czechoslovakia, El 
Salvador, Ethiopia, France, India, Italy, Ja:.1an, Jordan, 
SAnegal, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United, 
Kingdom of Great Britain andNorthem~reland, United! 
States of America, Urugtiay, Yugoslavia. 

Observers for the following Member States: Brazil, 
Canada, Chile, Denmark, Dominican Republic, Indo-· 
nesia, Israel, Morocco,' Nepal, Netherlands, Pakistan." 
Peru, Philippines, Poland, Syria, Thailand. · 

Representatives of the following specialized agen­
cies: International Labour Organisation; United Nations 
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization; 
World Health Organization; International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development; international Mone­
tary Fund. 

AGENDA ITEM. 4 
Report of the International Monetary Fund (E/3696 and Add.l) 

·(concluded) 

1. Mr. ANJ ARIA (India) thanked the Managing Director 
of the International Monetary Fund for the admirable 
statement he had made at the preceding meeting, in 
which he had mentioned certain fundamental problems 
such as the world payments situation and the need 
for stability in order to ensure the economic growth 
of the developing countries. 
2. The world payments situation had improved con­
siderably in recent years, and that was one of the 
Fund's main services to the international community. 
Stability was of vital importance for the development 
of trade11 and it was encouraging to note that the balance 
of paym19nts of the industrialized countries had been 
strengthened and that the Fund had been able to 
mobilize resources to meet countries' needs through 
an agreement which it had concluded with GATT in 
order to remedy situations brought about by un­
favourable capital movements. 

a. As he saw it, there were three main causes of 
balance of payments difficulties. With regard to the 
first-namely, fluctuations in the prices of primary 
comtnodities, which frequently endangered the exports 
of the developing countries-the Fund had developed 
a compensatory financing plan. With regard to the 
second-nantely, inflationary pressures ofveryvaried 

NEW YORK 

origin, which countries sornet~mes themselves created 
by their development efforts-consultaMon with the 
Fund and the provision of assistance by the latter 
were extremely useful; the F'und had frequently inter­
vened in order to eaee certain temporary difficul­
ties and had endeavoured to increase the stability of· 
foreign currencies held by the exporting countries. 
The third cause of balance of payments difficulties 
was connected, in certain cases, with improper use 
of foreign ai.d. 
4. Balance of payments difficulties were more deeply 
rooted in the developing countries than in the indus­
trialized nations. In the case of the latter. they were 
often only temporary and were related to th(~ various 
phases of the trade cycle; in the developingcountries, 
they were an integral part of the development process 
itself. The Fund could not help to solve those problems 

· by supplying long-term resources. It was quite obvious 
that the developing countries would often ha.ve to resort 
to sources other than the Fund. Although the Fund 
could not be regarded directly or primarily as a tool 
for economic development, it did in fact play an im­
portant role in that field by creating a favourable 
climate fo!' payments balances and foreign currencies. 

25 

5. Another source of difficulties was the delay whioh 
occurred between the time when a loan or the opening 
~te fo:r a credit was approved and the time when the 
?~:~Nds were actua. DJ.v· paid out; but those difficulties 
Vli-3i'!3 ;;,:'idnly merely procedural matters. He was 
p:'~c:!l!sed to re.call t~~e effective aid given by the Fund 
to his own country, which in the previous summer had 
obtained a $100 million stand-by credit. 
6. The Fund had played a pa:..~ticularly important role 
in the field of technical assistance. The Managing 
Director of the Fund had mentioned, in connexion 
with trade policies, the responsibilities of the develop­
ing countries and of the industrialized countries. The 
latter would haye to open their markets and provide 
new outlets for the under-developed regions. The 
developing countries themselves would have to find 
new resources. He quoted the example of his own 
country, which had had to face considerable difficulties 
owing to problems of national defence; it had preferred 
to solve them by increasing taxes substantially rather 
than by resorting to inflation. 

7. He was gratified at the expansion of the Fund's 
activities, and praised it.s flexibility and its ability to 
adapt itself to new situations. 

B. Mr. BAYONA (Colombia) drew attention, in par­
ticular, to the work done 'by the Interna~ional Monetary 
Fund in Latin America. In the case of his own country • 
the assistance glven had taken many different forms: 
technical assistance, consultations and, in particula:r, 
the opening, under an arrangement of principle, of a 
credit equivalent to 200 per cent of its quota. The 
Fund had also played a part in the co-ordination of 
Colombian financing plans. The report showed that 
the year 1962 had been an exceptional one in every 
respect. 

E/SR.l246 



26 Economic and Social Council - Thirty ... fifth Session 

9. He regretted the departure of Mr. Jacobsson and 
paid a tribute to the organizing ability which the latter 
had shown as Managing Director cf the International 
Monetary Fund. 

10. Mr. B:.::GHAM (United States of America) said 
that 1962 had been a very remarkable year which had 
witnessed, in particular, the conclusion in October 
1962 of a speciP 1 arrangement with a number of coun­
tries, providing for the opening of confirmed credits 
in the Fund. That would serve to guarantee the stability 
of the principal currencies and to strengthen the world 
monetary system. The resources of the Fund had con­
tinued to grow. One of the factors in that growth had 
been the increase of drawings in convertible cur­
rencies other than the dollar; they had amounted, in 
1962, to 81 per cent of the total drawings of eighteen 
countries, seventeen of the latter belonging to the 
group of under-developed countries. Repurchases had 
aiso been higher than in previous years. It was note­
worthy that the United Kingdom had repaid a substan­
tial part of its 1961 drawing. 

11. Seven countries had become members of the Fund 
in 1962, thus bringing the membership to eighty-two 
with quotas totalling $15,000 million. Twenty requests 
for admission had been made. Almost all of the new 
members and appli~ants for admission were newly 
independent countries of Africa. 

12. The Fund had continued to provide consultation 
and technical assistance services in the financial 
and monetary fields. It was worth emphasizing that 
the assistance granted in the form of compensatory 
financ~"ng would in no way reduce the amount of normal 
dra.wings, and that it would accordingly be possible 
to provide increasing resources to meet the needs of 
the developing countl'ies. 

13. The Fund was showing increasing interest in the 
problems of dynamism and growth and was participat­
ing more effectively in the development process. 

14. He wished to pay a tribute t.o Mr. Jacobsson and 
to th~ manner in whic}l the latter had guided the Fund's 
actf-;rities. He was sorry to learn that Mr. J."!oobsson 
was attending the meet!ngs of the Council for the last 
time. 

15. Mr. TETTAMANTI (Argentina) n<'ted with satis­
faction the .. considerable strengthening of the inter- · 
national monetary system during the period covered 
by the report (E/3696 anrl Add.1), owing to the ar­
rangement .concluded by the Fund with ~:3n major 
industrial countries whereby some $6,000 million 
were mad-2 available to it, In addition, thu Fund's 
operations had increased at an unprecedented rate 
during the period under review. 

16. As Mr. Jacobst.•:Jn. had said, the year. between 
May 1961 and April 1962 had been one of !~·'")nomic, 
finan.cial and political crises, but the important point 
was the reaction of the various couutraes to those 
crises according to thejr respective· situations .. Gen­
erally speaking, the economic and financial diffi­
culties had b~en overcome, but there were certain 
slight differences that should be borne in mind. The 
means avtdlable to the different countries for ensur­
ing a rate of economic g1•owth which would be adequate 
in :relation to population increases varied considerably. 
The instruments of financial and fi..Jcal policy which 
the indur.trial countries and the developing countries 
could put into effect differed as widely as their re­
spective e.~onomic structures. The former could deal . 

with the most serious problems in an atmosphere of 
political stability, and possible set-backs would not 
shake the confidence of their peoples, whe:raas in the 
developing countries the difficulty lay precisely in the 
uncertainty of the future; it was well known that con­
fidence was the very foundation of any national and 
international monetary system. When one heard the 
French representative talk of his country's tremendous 
gains in the economic field, it was impossible to avoid 
the thought that there was a great difference between 
making plans with reserves of about $4,000 million, 
even if those reserves represented only six months' 
exports, and working out a policy when such res~rves 
had fallen to one month's exports and sometimes even 
less. 

17. For that reason, the Fund could not confine itself 
to being merely the custodian of the monetary Jystem, 
and it was conforting to hear Mr. Jacobsson refer to 
the Fund's ever-growing experience in the problems 
of the developing countries. The success of a policy 
of expansion without inflation, in which Argentina 
firmly believed, must depend on the progress of inter­
national co-operation. International trade was the 
mainspring of such expansion, and it was in the hands 
of the industrialized countries. For many reasons, 
now was the time to put it to work. 

18. In the plan announced by the Fund on 27 February 
1963, regarding financial compensation for the de­
veloping countries· with a view to solving the balance 
of payments problems . caused by the fall of their 
export receipts in specific circumstances, the Argen­
tine delegation saw proof of the increasing a.ttention 
paid by the Fund to the problems of the developing 
countries, and it therefore welcomed it warmly. 

19. Mr. FRANZI (Italy} said that, since 1955, the 
membership of the Unitbd Nations and of the Inter­
national Monetary Fund had risen in almost identical 
proportions. That parallel progress was very signifi­
cant; it indicated current trends and pressures in the 
international economic field. 

20. The world of today could be dividsd into three 
groups of countries, each of which had their own 
financial and monetary problems. 

21. The first group, that of the highly industrialized 
countries, was exposed to the risks of short-term 
capital movements. Those countries were concerned 
with the obstacles that might be encountered by an 
increase in the volume of trade if the resources neces­
sary fol' such an increase were insufficient. Their 
problem wa.s therefore one of international short-term 
and long-term liquidity. 

22. The second group consisted of countries whose 
economies were based essentially of monoculture. 
Those countries had borrowed from abroad in order 
te; carry out their development programmes and were 
reluctant to enter into new commitments. In addition, 
the1y had to face the progressive deterioration of the· 
terms of trade in their commercial relations with the 
industrialized countries. 

23. The third group, the newly independent countries, 
encountered most of their difficulties in connexion 
with the building of their infra-structurep and needed 
both substantial financial support and adequate tech• 
nical assistance. 

24. The problems facing the different ... ·"'ups of coun• 
tries were largely interrelated. The difficulties of the. 
under-developed countries con:cerned the .industrial• 



1246th meeting- 4 April1963 27 

ized countries also, and the latter could come to 
the assistance of the under-developed regions only 
if the world monetary system was working well. 

25. That last point led to the examination of the 
question of the ii1ternational liquidity essential to 
regularity of payments; the problem had two aspects: 
short-te.rm liquidity and long-term liquidity. 

26. So far as short-term liquidity was concerned, 
the report of the Fund and the conversations held in 
Washington had shown that the international monetary 
system was currently in a position to perform its 
functions without any need for modification. As for 
long-term liquidity, it would be premature to try to 
formulate conclusions forthwith, since the position 
was not yet entirely clear. The question should be 
studied as soon as possible, because it involved an 
international trade of $130,000 million a year, not 
counting short-term capital movements, whereas gold 
reserves amounted to only $40,000 million and their 
rate of growth was inadequate in relation to the in­
crease in international trade. Was there not, therefore, 
a danger of si1ch trade being limited? Would it be 
possible to. continue using the gold standard, supported 
by a few h.ey currencies? Would it perhaps be ad­
visable to concentrate some of the available currencies 
in regional or world institutions? 

27. It would be an exaggeration to speak of contra­
dictory trends in the Washington discussions on those 
and similar problems; it was enough to·say that some 
quarters seemed more ready than others to go more 
deeply into the study of long-term internationalliqw-· 
dity. ' 

28. Regarding the Fund's action on behalf of the 
developing countries, the report showed that the Fund 
had had many more transactions with those countries 
than with the industrialized nations. Moreover, al­
though it was true that the Fund's action could apply 
only to temporary deficits in their balancer of payments, 
it was a fact that the Fund was now paying more and 
more attention to the long-term problems of the less 
developed countries and that its policy had become 
more flexible. From that point of view, it might be 
sai :l that the Fund had contributed indirectly to the 
'l;'ealization of long-term development plans. In addi .. 
tion, stress had recently been laid on the part which· 
the Fund could play in assistingtheprima:r.yp:roducing 
countries, still wi.thout going beyond the bounds of its 
present statute; the Fund had adopted more flexible 
criteria 1.n favour of those countries· in· the form of 
compensatory financing which could be granted, inde­
pendently of drawing rights, in the face offluctuations 
. in income from exports of primary products. Without 
harbou!'ing too many illusions as to the amplitude of 
the results which a solution of that kind could bring 
about, it should be recognized as an important step in 
a new direction, and the Italian delegation welcomed 
it as such; it. recalled, however, that the decision must 
be accompanied by action from all countries to facili­
tate access to the markets of the highly industrialized 
countries, and by adequate technical and financial· 
assistance to the developing countries. 

29. The action taken by the Fund therefore showed 
: that it could adapt itself gradually to the needs of the 
day. That flexibility would be useful in solving prob­
lems of short and long-term international Uquidity. 
Italy considered that increased utilization of curran .. 
cies other than the dollar for the Fund's operations 
could h(:)lp considerably to reduce the pressure on the 

key currencies. : · .e Fund .& policy in that rega:t•d since 
1962 had been significant. However, wider recourse 
to currencies other than the dollar preaupposed the 
existence of conditions depending on the initiative of 
the Fund itself; so far as liquidity was concerned, 
some attention must be r"'"\d to seeking solutions which 
would facilitate the acc-..tmulation of the currencies 
in question. As for the utilization of those CUl .. :rencies, 
it should be based exclusively on the actual needs of 
the country concerned if their reconversion, which 
would be quite contrary to the aim in view, was to 
be avoided. 

30. Italy was contributing to the defenceofthepresent 
international monetary system, the validity of which it 
recognized. The action of the Italian authorities had 
been aimed at reducing the balance of payments sur­
plus by reinforcing Italy's liberal import policy and 
promoting exports of short and long-term Italian 
capital. Those measures had made it possible to 
stabilize the level of Italy's reserves despite the ex­
pansion of its trade. The surplus of foreign excha.nge 
entering Italy had been offset by the purchase of 
medium-term international securities and by loans 
to the Government of the United States. Lastly, in 
order to avoid rapid transfers of capital from one 
market to another because of differences in interest 
rates, the Italian authorities had recently taken steps 
designed to integrate the Italian money market with 
the international money market. 

31. In conclusion, he recalled that Italy had never 
applied to the International Monetary Fund for as­
sistance and that it was now a creditor of the Fund_. 
It was none the less anxious to make its contribution 
to the Fund's operations, particularly when it was a 
question of remedying temporary cilsequilibrium in the 
developing countz:ies' b~lances of payments. Finally, 
the Italian delegation wished to thank Mr. Jacobsson 
for his work as Managing Director of the Fund. 

32. Mr. CARRILLO (El Salvador) commended the 
International Monetary Fund for the valuable work it 
had accomplished and the services it had rendered 
in promoting international monetary co-operation by 
providing the necessary consultation facilities for the 
consideration of world monetary problems. The Fund 
had also contributed to the balanced growth of inter­
nl1.tional trade and the development of sources of 
production in member countries. Moreover, it had 
promoted currency stability, thereby achieving one 
of its main q}.)jectives. Lastly, it had established ef­
fective machinery for offsetting the effects of balance 
of p~wments disequilibria. It had managed to .:win t}le 
confidence of its members by its readiness to make 
its resources available to them, subject to adequate 
guarantees. It was eloquent testimony to its effective­
ness that most of the countries that had recently 
achieved independence had applied for membership 
in the Fund so that, by 31 December 1962, there had 
been eighty-one member countries, whose combined 
contributions amounted to $15,000 million. The Fund's 
rol~ in the matter of consultation was of particular 
itnportance to the developing countries which were 
seeking to establish ties with other CO'.!.'ltries so as 
to achieve a more profitable flow of international 
trade. In that connexion, his delegation hoped that 
the Fund would take an active part in the forthcoming 
United Nations Conference on Trade and Development. 
In conclusion, he associated himself with previous 
speakers who had congratulated Mr. Jacobs son on 
his efforts as Managing Director of the Fund. 



28 Economic and Social Council- Thirty-fifth Session : 

33. Mr. PASTORI (Uruguay) also congratulated Mr. 
Jacobsson on the remarkable statement he had made 
to the Council. So far as Uruguay's rel~tions with 
the Fund were concerned, he stressed that his Gov­
ernment had complied with the agreements made and 
that, despite the enormous efforts involved, it had 
maintained its currency at a stable l&vel during the 
preceding four years. That was doubly significant if 
it was remembered that Uruguay had had to face a 
rise in domestic wages, largely because higher import 
prices had increased the cost of Uvhtg. 

34. The Uruguayan delegation was plt~ased to note 
that the Fund was taking steps to overcome the dif­
ficulties facing the developing countries as a result of 
fluctuations in the earnings they derived from the 
expor.t. of their primary commodities. Noting the new 
provi . .:.ous adopted by the Fund in the matter of com­
pensatory financing, he drew attention to two points 
that were of vital importance to Uruguay. First, despite 
what might have been said to the contrary, the deficit 
in Uruguay's balance of payments was not a short­
. term problem but a long-term phenomenon resulting 
from the drop in prices and the restrictions applied 
on the world market; in the circumstances, the as­
sistance provided by the. Fund should be consistent 
with the magnitude of the problem and with the neetls 
of the situation. Secondly, it was clear that, although 
the problem. in Uruguay and other Latin American 
countries was of a long-term nature, the percentage 
of compensatory financing out of the Fund should not 
necessarily be established on an a priori basis; the 
special circumstances of each country would have to 
be taken into account. Those remarks were not made 
in a spirit of criticism but with a view to achieving 
greater co-operation in a vital endeavour. In any 
case, Uruguay was pleased with the decisions which 
had been taken and which would no doubt mark a de­
cisive step towards solving the problems that had 
been brought before the Council. 

35. Mr. WODAJO (Ethiopia) said· that he was pleased 
to note the progress that had been made by the Inter­
national Monetary Fund, which had originally been 
intended to deal primarily with matters connected 
with the balance of payments of the industrialized 
countries and was now concerned with similar prob­
lems confronting the developing countries. The diffi­
ou.lties which those countries faced de:i'ived from the 
static nature of their economiee::; but if they wished 
to ,give their economies a dynamic impetus, the de­
veloping countries must contend with balance of pay­
ments problems. He had been pleased to note the 
efforts made by the Fund to allevi '-\te short-term 
problems. It was not surprising that the developing 
t)Om:tries had taken as great an interest as the indus­
trialized countries in the Fund's actil1ities in that 
connexion, and it was significant to note that most 
of the new members of the Fund were Mrican coun­
tries. HA also joined in the tributes that had been 
paid to Mr. Jacobsson. 

36. Mr. DELGADO (Senegal) also congratulated Mr. 
Jacobr.son on the work he had done and said that he 
was gratified to note the measures which the Fund 
had just taken in the matter of compensatory financing. 
He stressed that a new era of co-operation had begun 
between Senegal and the Fund since his country had 
become a membt;."•, and he pointed out that Senegal's 
contribution of $7,5 million would gradually be raised 
to $25 million. Senegal regarded the Fund as a key 
to economic development. He also pointed out that 

his country's co-operation had brought about a radical 
change in the structure of the Central Bank of the 
States of West Africa. That type of international co­
operation at the regional level would eventually lead 
to currency integration. 

37. Mr. J ACOBSSON (Managing Director of the Inter­
national Monetary Fund) expressed appreciation for 
the tributes that had been paid to him. The decisions 
of the Fund's ··executive Board were taken after con­
sultation with the various Governments concerned and, 
although negotiations were often lengthy' they always 
resulted in unanimous agreement. 

38. In reply to the many representatives who had 
emphasized the need for the Fund to apply a flexible 
policy, he said that such was indeed the policy of the 
Fund, notwithstanding the strict monetary principles 
which the Fund had to observe. As a result of the 
prestige acquired through its orthodoxy, the Fund 
WOUld be able to give sympathetic COD,Sideration to 
certain exceptional circumstances in individual mem­
ber countries .. 
39. As the representative of Uruguay had pointed 
out, development financing certainly involved a long­
term problem, but the financing offered by the Fund 
was on a short-term basis. It was also true, as the 
representative of Ethiopia had said, that the progress 
of developing countries entailed balance of payments 
problems. They were obliged to import on a large 
scale, and they probably had deficits in their current 
accounts, but they only faced serious problems if they 
failed to adopt a rational method of financing in time. 
Nowadays there were agencies that provided long-term 
financing that would enable them to overcome serious 
deficits in their balance of payments. 

40. The Fund was well aware of those problems and 
particula:rly of the problem of the effect of balance 
of payments deficits on development. It had even 
decided to play a more active part in· the consortia 
established by the International Bank for Reconstruc­
tion and Development and the ·Organisation for Eco­
nomic Co-operation and Development (OECD), and 
some of its most highly qualified representatives were 
actively participating in their meetings as observers. 
It could therefore be said that, although it was not in 
a position to devote its resources to long-term financ-
. ing, the Fund was taking a close interest in that matter. 

41. As regards fluctuations in commodity prices, he 
pointed out that if the drop in prices, which might 
have been feared a year earlier, had not materialized, 
the credit was due to the Eurbpean countries and the 
United States, which had steadily applied a fiscal and 
credit policy that favoured economic growth. It would 
be premature to forecast future price trends, but there 
was no doubt that the market for raw materials had 
rallied in the past few months. 

42. Lastly, as regards the future of the Fund, he was 
sure that it had sufficient liquid assets and that its 
·institutional machinery was sufficiently flexible , to 
afford every opportunity r-or dynamic growth. 

43. The PRESIDENT expressed the Council's sincere 
gratitude to Mr. Jacobsson for the exceptional work 
he had accomplished as head of the International 

. Monetary Fun de Since no proposals had been submitted 
on the agenda item, he proposed that the '!lsual pro-. 
cedure should be followed and that the Council should 
adopt a resolution in which it merely took note of the 
report it had consider~d. ' 



I 
I 

1246th meeting - 4 April 1963 29 

It was so decided. 

AGEN">A ITEM 10 

Population questions (E/3723 and Corr.l, E/CN.9/167, E/ 
.CN.9/177 and Add.l, E/CONF.41/PC/1, E/l.985) (9!.!!: 
tinued) --

44, Mr. MELOVSKI (Yugoslavia) recalled that in its 
report (E/3723 and Corr.l) the Population Commis­
sion had rightly stressed two problems: population 
growth and the relationship between such growth and 
economic a:nd social development. 

45. It appeared from the Secretariat survey of world 
fertility levels and trends (E/CN.9/167) thatthepopu­
lation of the countries of Asia, Africa and L·atin 
America was increasing twice as rapidly as that of 
the countries of Europe and North America. Those 
regions with a high rate of population growth were 
mainly countries in which there was a risk that the 
phenomenon of over-population might create a situation 
which impeded economic and social development. The 
Population Commission had not recommended any 
over-all solutions because the problem differed ac­
cording to the particular conditions "in each country". 
That was something which, in the first place, interested 

·countries should decide for themselves. The Secre­
tariat survey showed, for example, that the birth~ rate 
decreased in some countries with urbanization, im­
provements in. education and in the status of women, 
and higher living levels, while it had been observed 
that in other countries not only had such progress not 
been followed by a drop in the fertility rate, but in 
some ca~:~es it had even resulted in a rise in that rate. 
46. The Population Commission had therefore stressed 
the need to develop and systematize the studies on 
the various aspects of the world demographic situation 
and its relationship with economic and social develop­
ment. In that connexion, the Secretary-General's 
questlonua'ire should adopt a scientific approach, with­
out prejudging the policies or measures which Gov­
ernments would want to adopt. 
47. His delegation fully endorsed the general view 
of the Population Commission that the acceleration 
of economic and social developmer.lt should be the 
main goal of developing countries and that the problem 
of demographic growth could ancl should be solved 
within the context of general efforts for the accelera­
tion of economic and social developm.ent by the creation 
of necessary material conditions and the Jl·roduction · 
of material goods so as to meet the grow .. ng needs 
of the society. That was the only way of ensuring a 
durable solution. That would naturally not prevent the 
countries which needed to Unlit their population growth 
in order to adjust it to their economic needs from 
taking any other measures they deemed advisable. 
48. As recommended by the. Commise.ton, regional 
demographic activities should also be intensified and 
improved, with due regard to the role which the re­
gional economic commissions could play in that 
·respect. 

49. Significant among those activities in the near 
future would be the holding of two conferences. The 
Yugoslav Government had i.nvited one of them, the 
second World Population Conference, to meet at Bel­
grade. In connexion with that invi'~ation, his delegation 
thanked the French representative for the tribute he 
had. pai~ to Yugoslavia in his statement at the 1244th 
meeting, but wished to emphasize that the Yugoslav 

Government had no intention of taking precedence 
over the African of Latin American countries. It had 
m~de its offer only after being informed by'the Secre­
tariat that no invitation had been received from the . 
countries in question. There would therefore be no 
pnint in altering the orde:r of the sub-divisions of 
paragraph 3 (J2) of draft resolution I, as the French 
representative had proposed, That provision merely 
noted the Yugoslav offer and left the door open for 
any invitations which might be extended by African 
or Latin American countries. 

50. His delegation supported th~ two draft resolutions 
appearing in chapter XII of the report of the Population 
Commission (E/3723 and Corr.l) and the draft reso­
~lution submitted by the representative of Japan 
•(E/L.985). 

51. Mr.· DELGADO (Senegal) said that his delegation 
appreciated the scientific nature of the report of the 
Population Commission. The problem of population 
growth and its relationship with economic development, 
although complex and controversial, was of particular 
interest to planners in every country. Africa was 
no exception for, as waF.t shown by the report of tp.e 
Seminar on Population Problems in Africa (E/CN .14/ 
186), held at Cairo in the autumn of 1962, the rate 
of population growth in Africa was higher than in 
other developing regions. That factor, together with 
the economic and social structure of the active popu­
lation, was liable to be an obstacle to the economic 
aud social development of almost all African countries. 
Consequently, even if in those coul'ltries an annual 
rate of growth of national income of 5 per cent was 
attained by the end of the United Nations Development 
Decade, the resulting increase in per caput inc·ome 
would be only slight. 

52. The Senegalese Government had given that prob­
lem much thought when preparing the first four-year 
development plan (196D-1964). It had been established 
that children under fourteen accounted for 41 per 
cent of the . population and that in thirty years' time 
the population would grow from 3 million to 6 million, 
which was an annual rate of increase of 2 to 2.5 per 
cent. 

53. All the African countrie(ll must make a special 
effort to solve population questions and that ·effort 
could be facilitated by United Nations assistance. His 
delegation therefore fully supported the draft resolu­
tions and very positive recommendations submitted 
by the Population Commission. The questions of cen­
suses, the development of civil registration and in­
ternal migration were specifically Africc.n problems 
which should be solved as a matter of urgency. 

54. His delegation welcomed the idea of a demographic 
training and research until in the African Institute 
for Economic Development and Planning to be opened 
shortly at DakarG So far as the establishment of re­
gional centres was concerned, such centres should be 
geographloally distributed so that they could suc­
cessfully meet the requirements of all the African 
countries. 

55. He supported the idea of holding the next World 
Population Conference in an African or :Latin American 
country. The Senegalese Government was :ready to 
co-operate whole-heartedly in the implementation of 
the Population Commission's :recommendations. 

56. Mr .. MATSCH (Austria) said that his delegation 
was fully aware of the need to publish statistical data 



30 Economic and Social Council - Thirty-fifth Session 

on the world demographic situation and to improve 
census ·methods. The results of censuses would provide 
a sound basis for the selection of economic and social 
policies and for further studies on the effect of popu­
lation changes on economic and social development 
in a given region or country. His delegation therefore 
welcomed the Secretary-General's efforts to carry 
out an inquiry of world fertility levels and thought 
that the study on tha~ question (E/CN.9/167) added 
considerably to the available knowledge in that regard. 
But some of the data were only approximate, and 
methods of inquiry would have to be further improved 
before comparisons could be made and long-term 
projections established at an international level. 

57. He supported the suggestion of holding the second 
World Population Conference in 1965, which would 
make possible a more detailed evaluation of. the data 
provided by Governments that had taken censuses in 
1960-1961. With regard to the documentation to be 
prepared for the Conference, his delegation would 
give high priority to the revision of the 1952 study 
entitled The Determinants and Consequences of Popu­
lation Trends.!/ 

58. With regard to the manner in which the Secretary­
General should put General Assembly resolution 1838 
(XVII) into effect, his delegation associated itselfwith 
those which had recommended the method followed by 
the Secretary-General on other occasions, namely, of 
requesting Governments to provide all information on 
the matters in question. In any case, a questionnaire 
dit not seem necessary for the purposes of the pro­
posed inquiry, as the subject under discussion was 
controversial and delicate. 

59. Mr. SOLODOVNIKOV (Union c~f Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that his delegation appreciated the 
Secretariat's effort to intensify its activities in the 
·demographic field •. It attached great importance to the 
problem of population, particularly so far as it af­
fected economic and social development prospects. 
The importance of that problem to many countries, 
particularly the economically less developed, could 
not be denied. 

60. There was concern lest the excessively high 
birth-rate might not only continue but increase. There 
had been references to a population explosion present­
ing a threat even more serious than nuclear weapons. 
Some Western circles were making usa of those neo­
Malthusian· ideas to distract world pubU.c opinion from 
the real causes of the poverty of the under-deve!')ped 
countries, by attributing economic backwardness to 
excessively rapid population growth, rather than to 
long years of exploitation in the colonial era. Effor.ts 
were being made to use the United Nations to spread 
propaganda on that subject .and to disseminate theories 
which were at variance with reality. 

61.. The demographio problem was not in fact a real 
one. It existed only beca'l,lse il1 some countries the 
level of producti(Jn wa.s too low and was not rising 
at the same r~.te as the population. His delegation 
thought tt was the duty of United Nations bodies, and 
particularly of ihe Population Commission~ to speak 
out against Malthusian explanations of population 
changes. If population problems were to be eliminated, 
emphasis must be placed on the dave!opment of all 
seotors of the economy of developing countries, par­
ticularly agricultural production, and on improved 

Y Unhed Nations pUblication, Sales No.: 53.XJII,3. 

standards of living and education for the population, 
rather than on efforts to find ways of decreasing the 
population. 

62. Similarly, the proposed inquiry to be made of 
Governments on the reciprocal action of economic 
development and population changes should not stress 
only problems connected with birth control. !t should 
also deal with economic conditions in the various 
countries and their effects on po~alation movements, 
and wit,h the necessary measures to increase the rate 
of economic development beyond that of population 
growth. 

63. He noted with satisfaction that the UnitedNations 
had expanded its activities at the regional level in 
the demographic field. In that connexion, he pointed 
out that the competent agencies in his cow1try were 
in a position to provide technical assistance to the 
less developed countries in their demographic in­
quiries, having considerable experience and trained 
staff in that field. 

64. He regretted that, as a result of the decisions 
taken with regard to the second World Population 
Conference, the membership would consist of experts 
and scientists acting in their individual capacity, rather 
than of Government delegations, a more logical ar­
rangement. The conclusions and results on the Con­
ference could only be addressed to Governments or 
governmental organizations. It was also a pity that 
the work proposed for 1963 regarding migration from 
rural areas and the effects of internal migration on 
the urban and rural populations of the less de·veloped 
countries was to be deferred until 1964~ 

65. Mr. ATTOLICO (Italy) said be would not deal at 
the moment with the merits of the· report submitted 
by the Population Commission (E/3723 and '.Jorr.1). 
He noted, however, that that document' showed clearly 
the intricacies and complexities of population prob­
lems. 

66. Referring to chapter III of the report, the chapter 
entitled 11Population growth and economic develop­
mente~, he recalled his delegation's clea7:1y defined 
attitude towards that question when the latter had been 
considered at the · seventeenth session of the General 
Assembly. His delegation was still convinced that the 
United Nations could in no way at't in conflict with 
certain ft, ... 1a.mental principles and tenets covering 

· the way . life of his country. In that conne~on, he 
reiterate ... the views advanced by the ItaUan repre­
sentative on the Population Commission ·~y!th regard 
to the recommendation to conduct· an inqw1:ry among 
Member States concerning the problems confronting 
them as a result of the reciprocal action of economic 
development and population changese He consequently 

·thought that the inquiry recommended by the General 
Assembly and approved by the Population Commission 
should. be carried out in conformity with paragraph 3 
of resolution 1838 (XVIJ.), which provided clear enough 
terms of reference as to the informntion.to be elicited 
from Member St.ates. Italy Would oppose strongly the 
use of any form of detailed questionn9.ire drawn up by 
the United Nations Secretariat, for such a method 
would be quite unsuited to the widely varying situations 
existing throughout the world in that connexion. Indeed, 
the Italian delegation maintained that a questionnai:ce 
would limit the possibilities for Government to present 
those situations and tnight change the nature and scope 
of the proposed inquiry~ It hoped that the Secretary­
General would take those reservations into account 



.1246th meeting - 4 April 1963 31 

and WOUld. act. in a10COrdance With the Specific recom­
mendations of the General As.sembly, as there was no 
justification for any other procedure. 

67. Mr. PASTORI 1(Uruguay) offered his delegation's 
congratulations to the Popu!ation Commission for its 
report. His delega.ti~)n recognized the importance of 
population problems, particularly in connexion with 
the preparation of economic and social development 
programmes in devel1oping countries. The Uruguayan 
Government had started a national census'which would 
be completed during th19 current year. It would thereby 
have attained one of the objectives which the Population 
Commission considered of fundamental importance. 

68. The Commission in its report hadproposedtothe 
Council for adoption two draft resolutions which his 
delegation was, for several reasons, unfortunately not 
in a position to support. 

69. First, the report of the Preparatory Com­
mittee for the second World Population Conference 
(E/CONF.41/PC/1), approved by the Populati.onCom­
mission, suggested, in paragraph 25, that documents 
prepared during the Conference should not be issue i 
in Spanish. That was unjustifi.able, as the Population 
Commission was a functional,commission of the Eco.;. 
nomic and Social Council and as the publication of 
Conference documents in Spt..~lish would not entail any 
great additional expense. 

70Q Moreover,. draft resolution I proposed by the 
Population Commission ignored, in operative para­
graph 1, an elementary principle, namely, that it was 
for each Government to decide its own policy in demo­
g:taphic matters and to formulate its own programmes 

of action. The adoption of that paragraph would be a 
flar,rant infringement of General Assembly resolution 
1838 (XVII). Moreover, paragraph 1 of that draft reso­
lution, as now worded, was a blanket approval of the 
agenda •Jf the Conference, which included such topics 
as the effectiveness of measures aimed at influencing 
fertility, as well · as the attitudes and motives per­
taining to fertility, and the knowledge and practice 
of methods of fertility control, Questions relating to 
the great mystery of life were beyond the competence 
of the Council. Were representa.tives qualified to 
reveal the secrets of men who might have been born 
but were not born? Moreover, the Council would be 
accepting indirectly a. policy in which the United 
Nations could not become involved. At the same time, 
it would be tackling economic and demographic prob­
lems in a half-hearted manner, in a spirit of renun­
ciation and with a lack of faith in the better future 
that universal efforts would bring. His defegation 
thought that no decision should be taken without care­
ful reflection and that the Council should not adopt a 
resolution whose consequences were not foreseeable. 
His delegation was also opposed to the submis1:1ion 
to Governments of a detailed questionnaire, which 
might be tendentious, to elicit their opiniononpopula­
tion probl,9ms. Such a questionnaire would be useless, 
because the General Assembly resolution was already 
sufficiently clear and because each Government was 
perfectly capable of providing the informaUon which 
it considered relevant on all questions regarding that 
subject. 

The meeting rose a~ 5.55 p.m. 

U~~-o~tn~U~.~N~.------------------------------------------------------------------100 __ 00-__ J-~-e-l_%_S----2,100 




